PRAMER WD

11.

12.
13.

RECEIVED FOR RECORD
For 12,2024 01:54F

Jofinn Doyle
TOWH CLERK He—
CROMWELLy CT

Town of Cromwell
Planning and Zoning Commission

REGULAR MEETING
7:00 P.M. TUESDAY MARCH 19, 2024
TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS
CROMWELL TOWN HALL
41 WEST STREET

AGENDA

Call to Order

Roll Call

Seating of Alternates

Approval of Agenda

Public Comments:

Development Compliance Officer Report:

Director of Planning and Development Report:

New Business: Accept and Schedule New Applications:
a. Application #24-05: Request to modify the Site Plan at Torza’s Golf at 150 Sebethe Drive in
the Industrial Zone District. Plan calls for removing the existing mini-golf and batting cages
and replacing with more driving range area, pickle ball courts and new parking. Torza’s Golf is
the Applicant and RANDA LLC is the Owner.

New Business:

Public Hearings:

a. Request for a Special Permit under Section 2.2.C.4 of the Zoning Regulations to allow for
school operations and training at 84 Hicksville Road in the Residence 25 (R-25) Zone District.
Adelbrook, Inc./Adelbrook Hilltop Preschool and Daycare is the Applicant and Adelbrook, Inc.
is the Owner.

b. The adoption of the 2024 Town Plan of Conservation and Development (POCD). The Town
of Cromwell Planning and Zoning Commission is the Applicant. (continued from March 5,
2024 meeting).

Approval of Minutes:

a. February 20, 2024

b. March 5, 2024

Commissioner's Comments:

Adjourn:

1



TOWN OF CROMWELL
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

APPLICATION FOR SITE PLAN MODIFICATION

Name of Project: ‘ .'ﬂzﬂ-f ?/7a e M’ﬁf/:’l_/fj‘sz?r&)

Street Address: /50 _SEEEIFIE T

Volume/Page: PIN #

Applicant Name: —) P} L Y & mﬁﬂ Fozaii LC/P: fag > LLC B

Address: /50 eperie LF. P55 Tag 4’@2.!;
//&o pApv e 07 LY ém_),.

Telephone: 5/ 5E) 5 "7,;_,; (day) - (evening)

Email Address: J.c:mﬂc LLLC / Loran  fo84

Property ‘ T T N

Owner Nane: L ..ﬂmy /Z«v,;zzﬁ

Address: 97 QK YVIER W7

/,g{ff'f—/f‘/ o pPLo3f)

Attached:
( ) Application fee.

('} Twenty-five copies of the Site Development Plan prepared in accordance with
Axticle 13.3 of the Cromwell Zoning Regulations.

. Is gny part of the site within 500" of an adjoining town? (Yes) @3
2. Will this project require an Inland Wetlands Agency permit? (Yesy  ((No)
if'yes, have you obtained it? _ (Yes) (No)
3. Will this profect require a DEP Stormwater Management Perm :t? (Yes) o).
if yes, have you applied for it? T (Yes) (No)
4. Will this Project Require an STC Permir? (Yes) Moy’
if'yes, have you submitted a copy of the plans to the STC? (Yes)_  (No)
5. Does the parking comply with the handicapped parking @/ {No)

requirements as set forth in current version of the State Building Code?

I hereby certify that the | y’ormaﬁyvresented above is correct to the best of my knowledge.

d /' ,,az/zt/d_/« , 7.2%.29

Ap})}{cant’ﬁame and S1gnature Date
i

rev. 1/6/11

Y



TOWN OF CROMWELL
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

LEGAL NOTICE

The Town of Cromwell Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a Public Hearing on
Tuesday March 19, 2024 at 7:00 p.m. in Room 224 of the Cromwell Town Hall at 41
West Street on the following items:

1. Application #24-02: Request for a Special Permit under Section 2.2.C.4 of the Zoning
Regulations to allow for School operations and training at 84 Hicksville Road in the
Residence 25 (R-25) Zone District. Adelbrook, Inc./Adelbrook Hilltop Preschool and
Daycare is the Applicant and Adelbrook, inc. is the Owner.

2. The adoption of the 2024 Town Plan of Conservation and Development (POCD). The
Town of Cromwell Planning and Zoning Commission is the Applicant (continued from
March 5, 2024 meeting).

At this hearing interested persons may appear and be heard and written testimony
received. This application is available for public inspection in the office of the Town
Planner.

Alice Kelly
Chairman

Dated in Cromwell, Connecticut this the 7\" day of March 2024.



Application# _s_?ﬂ"_ O Q

TOWN OF CROMWELL
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL PERMIT

School Operations and Training

Type of Activity: |
(Per Section 22C4 | of the Cromwell Zoning Regulations)

Street Address: 84 Hicksville Road Zoning District: R~25

Assessor's Parcel ID #:00105700 Volume/Page: 1772 1525

Applicant's Name: Adelbrook, inc. / Adelbreok Hilltop Preschool and Day Care

Address: 84 Hicksville Road, Cromwell CT 06416

Telephone Number {(daytime): 860-510-8436
Email Address:  Nrestivo@adelbrook.org, agoduti@adelbrock.org

Property Owner's Name: Adelbrook, Inc.
Address: 84 Hicksville Road, Crowmell CT 06416

Description of Proposed Activity:

See Attached.

I certify that | have read and [ am familiar with the Cromwell Zoning Regulations that pertain to

this /fSpeEiEm'mit activity, and with Section 13.2.d. (Sign Pastmy
, Cﬁgﬂﬁxﬁ 2 // g /a [7’

(apblic?rﬁ) (datk) /




Adelbrook, Inc.
Adelbrook Hilltop Pre-school and Day Care Center
84 Hicksville Road, Cromwell CT 06416

Proposed use for school operations and schooltraining facitity

Existing use narrative:

Our property located at 84 Hicksville Rd in Cromwell formerly operated as a church and is currently
used as a Preschool and Daycare Center. We have 8 full time staff and 3 per diem staff members.
We have a roster of 64 children registered, and a waitlist of 6 additional children. The Preschool and
Daycare operates Monday through Friday from 6:30 AM to 5:30 PM, with parents typically dropping
off their children between 6:30-10:00 AM, and coming back for pick-up between 3:30-5:30 PM. The
property can accommodate up to 52 vehicles (including 2 handicap spaces), and the daycare
primarily operates out of the lower level of the building. The second floor has two offices, an
additional staff lounge/shared office, a conference room that is used as meeting space and a
recreation space for the children, and the former sanctuary/ church gathering space whichis
occasionally utilized as an additional space for preschoolers to play.

Proposed use narrative:

Our proposed build-out for the sanctuary and altar portion of the building would enable us to utilize
this large and frequently unoccupied church space as a training room for our new school employee
orientations and training. There would also be schoot administration offices. The space could also
be offered to the public for meetings/ community events. The former altar area would be
transformed into offices, which would be daily occupied by our training department team members
(3-5 offices). We would also be adding two ADA-accessible bathrooms to this space, primarily for
the use of trainings and meeting participants. We would ensure secure separation between this
portion of the building’s usage and the existing daycare through installation of doors with access
controls and alarms to prevent unauthorized individuals from accessing the school area.



E9LpEgTATR N TRIESETONE
0190 WINIIUULD 'pIoyL 15e3
13315 Wew 6LE|

371 °s21y20y ojpnis (ended
DLD3LIHDHY

‘ __ ' d¥W NOILY2OT
»

SIINCIHS
PUE Y30 TNOILYATTI HORELNI oy

SILON PUT S.J3H 'SHY I 0IDHYING L
5TV130 PUE SILON 'Hirdd 1IVHIAG oLy

TWENL3ILH S0V

I0d L

LS DONIMYHG

Moo
- IR B oy
.
oo LAy |
e -
e k..w gﬂ;r.q
o Y .
[ 5 .,.
‘, 5 o,
i A L. .
& . o B BT 4
G i TN .
e
: d P 0 SRS
Yo B i iy Ly
o LIS L2Ar0U
RL TR IR o
- e
. L —
G =
\ -

M3A3Y D

9190 LD ‘[|Iomuior)
PpPOoY SIIASHIIH 28

€70C ‘€1 HIGWIAON
t0-€7 afoud esd

HDOYNHD MO0Y4g13AaV 03 SNOILVAONIY TVd3INID

Pt AP [T T20T S B a s

T



W5 oL Lon \olsy

IS CTVE Sy IR
53453 M NV H00Td aNowe L/ NOILYWACNI F0109 N2/

SUrIAVRRTDE 0¥ LEH TR 10 Y ¢
4 , i SHIGRETYN A3H MW S0 ¢
4 TR

| BTN - W THE
IO 10 U ) SO0 IR D
EROE WAL H 000001 AT

ORI TR AU A
AR oXodEd (ST T W

70 el B T TR O31 TRATI R -

LIRN T AR TR SO B T T

DA A e T LT ¢ e SRATA
TUTTITTEY T TR T TATTR.

ors an m SEEK) 10K X2 5% 01
DY HITH B0 KT M R TR MOA RIS IRV

¥

R WO S Ik
ST 05 o RS B M SR
TR W T ATON ST 3 SR AR

O RO £ O - B
Ta ANEY AT D

T (AT EALE - O
TRV R VR

) o N3 R U] <
hH U 06 L P R PTRA AR 1461 S
: TR AT SIVEREN
v 20

) MECEAINE - i e Tt
it oua vt ; WRFRY§ Y KT
- R T

US04 o 101 90+ 8 U Sy e - N )

v 307 /01 Invone . [P

e a0 G ¢ 94 A 4 ST, AL - ST 4 AR SRS TV IR K01 ESOTN] RS S0t

H it o i — . . CHROECHS 73 S o e Y22
p anaon - Wormier -

" P 0§ TS L 0 8 f

R TGRSR e AT 4 TR TR B
: o o atonrs e -
ol o T
I T Wn ATYMATSONIIA O BN TR ¢
F " a WO (NNCEUNII T EThol Smevale
e s * oo SN ORSEAR -
woio AL e
s e Jets TS

PRI, RO TR TS IS TRTT WA

(BLE :
_ BBEREE

T
i1 IO - T % GO B - il
o RRITTTRAICN 15 943 GO0 1 S
T TR L
TR P HOL TRRRTPTN T
o e

P R

ARSI Ol b UL + ISV
TR AN
FERNTENECAR

L% e 1 4a e
o

TR
FRER e

BTN 3N O WO AL 11 0 M1 G SIBA0T) G511 Kn B R
34 10 25 700 1 Tt et e - MTOSTOTCRRVITN S GRGVTPATT
10 KA KA N S T IR KDLV AL 40
TruoIn EECTISRESTIEL -
SR AIM TIM AT 30 P X W S ) SO T
W VLW T 416 HADT ATy - TR NI TR ST AR
w0 e § PR
TR TR TR

AR TSI M L) TS HOUVHLTY MG 10N SLNIOM0S
AT ST W LA T MU 10N LT 1 Ot ¥ 3
ThHS, 20 i T L0 el Gl KLV I I VR SIS T+
TR AT W TR X i )

i

I JINE DL BXMUT O W31645 MY il AR

007 AROMA PSRN 0D

BN DN

SIUON NOLLITOWA U0 SNIMYHA TYaINIS i/

SR ] U PRI 3

Yonm s o oy bt 61 01 1503 wiktip0 woni o 1oubuo
o 0 R0 B 6 WD R 01 DR DR w0 samjrs wocipo butses nigw o) PR
- EELsuﬂ: hvsmn. 1 s Eyen 001 110U 104 B jo PO ’:?uﬂT.u&u_au
B = 000 7204 ) Buss 00,0 S TN £ DOC D Yo M A My o R iy
L L pen— o v oo Sntecd oo Tt £
10w 10 adens w vbroyy v prered oG @ o1 o1 ¥ o Fnasodse: s 2 koS 1§ 139M0. 1 O] pRsuA]
3 10YS S3/UDS IMBU0T AOOW RO ST | IHB4
shrom w1 og o Ap| MEERASa (@ W INEA DT 1 Y wampd 1IN G paido o) shuvon
) 9 ey v DUD SR #eoRu ([0 hpurs 2.0 cuwroud Yo% IO WATER By} 0] B LY O denys P 12D [0 Wi YV PRIAS KG
. HOUS U0 RS T (D GH G 0] SRR aRO0u SHRING S (D30 pRanIoy Sul i Paynnd 1S <wexihy rock 0 5o Fa prearos umdibe
e PRTARRIT R 1IN U PFAOUAS hossazau (o 2 i oTORD By | SLOTIEUOT b WAL NI 0 G BV S[DURION gD 1G4 Ja [Droxdde
I s13ay .w§ 39§ PO wxz 10 uonmo sadewd o] T e Al 1 o 3 velad syl 10 Loy AR
OIANLLS 7 — M.a.zwnn:ﬂ.ﬂug o sszuunu_u Bumuy Pt oa g papmns ey e s e s L paa g (e T Maudbn puo ADLnoE Y L
TV 9 6 pououd || JTIReY Dy e v s b s uRaq as Y g H0SII HOCWOSDRS 9.0 50 SASDOU KYDRY
sl audia P SI0LRIOU 1002 10] LT AdU0 o 9 o5 RuckIIED L 1901 9G 6] S50 X0 ORI OB N D109 61 Gabb-TTR-DORL
41500 ey i ve o pecodep g DI JO) SR 0 B4 VO T0UNO? P O O OTHINDT  PIARKGE O T 35007 ' B ach 2.012q 1D PoRE? 01 B TG
fIos sLasg a0 Ut Mgl PRI FEawn 1A YoM ] TR e g e o e NOTHIVRIOT P SMEY Mg mdkda (o Sucesind 2abiaq quom sucipg Sapad Rl PO Sacd s
SUTUAD DINGUDS (D BISOL LATHIAGT 1O QOIOT B it PR e P s xf hiegs oy Mradosd pao emeisd 1o voreiod 2] o Busing PHTIADY B AISI 00N
10 1sadsp (6 0] eigrvcdies & OPOMNRY Bl b i PRUDAR R0y O} IR G KN DIXINCT L G A 5| ST 10 10 POY LA B AN WEINGIEY b Y S0 TR I R0 B O D Y |

¥L13d #3aaYT JILLY 7 3dAL TIvM N2/

L el T

0 21 T 00
DT A

e e o e mavac
Py e
R ROV U AT W

Hamgp
@

e

a I AT

EPEUTEY

Te.nm fl
e vy ———— i
g

anR e g
L

&
IELECR

w1600 i w1

A iR

04w, LAY AT ISP L R T ST ¢

bk i AN S R

i

LTy e g b



YOGt
L]

L A TA

e ATV I

IR 5Y
o

ELOL 61 1d35

M1 AT

9 1) W Kt bz

ST010 SNINYRLL 2 Y GII N -

RPTERRIIII

G T
o e TR €

B sy S heg0 Sowrvn I it

& 7 7 o E _
— [ ; — I wHE
/ _ Lo O O
. T | = &7 - i
/ // N R i i »
\ b ek d oo o | # N
| e i . |
[ [t v] & L
Lo ! GRS ¢
kS - 1 3 H
N el 2= H ;
Fwﬂﬁahﬁa!a;ﬁ,M\r - = A rwar mnaY ,_ 350 B Ao AT e “W
-Ab-v,:-_llK _, N
- i P i 4
\ mamm K
Jw.. ™ i n,
J )
H & i
@ i
\ - T - ' __
. ) 034 e e ¢ b1 - b ™
p—— wam
i P RN ATa
SI0140 ONINVAL 10 N ONTIZD JALOTHIN L
m 1 R o i1 P w
LANE . !
, i
@ » o 2 ™ - ¥ * iwas _
o —HeA . _
|
o o ; s " om _
IH
i
< - _m
i
e ‘& w
e -t s W i
i
]
24i5) X 4 ._
il

?

nuns

DI TaIB) L) M TLTRIS Q48 01 Ry a0z A

SAOOHLYA MaN 10 Nvd G39avTa ~&/

oo ol

® @

o [~ 3T ETY N
iiaTimla-o
Bl I CTHE Sy

SHOOHALYE MIN 10 Nvd ONT3D a3 TR 2/

; ﬁs —

Lo

INBD Saw

SIION 3005 2

O ||

HVAD Latd. AT TR\ 794005 IR GG T Ot 0 U Y AR

i 570 Bt )]
0 8 o

T T 0 an oot i (1]

T R 1L 88
i eS0T D510 M £ KT 44RO A2 X000 OXM 011553 Tyt ot (3]

e reetm A Y 4 2 G TR0 VY 5T
. T A e ¥ TG
B hp e e Vot P ch 5 a BS DRt ot iR (3]

AOuEaI) MY 13T P R 4R nn 9o (L]

MU 0 RDIFTMA 1 DAIE) 0 MG
T ) @

T e e T N

s

o s ki e D 1 e i) i B k4 T 00 i e [
THY TN NP G348, SO0 GEEAT LR F MY U ALY (1 I G TIAL V) B A0 NN XA B
ot e 72 00 v s s s [

TP T Pa 30 3B SN (87Tl
O1 ST Y SO0 CHFIER TRy 1T ML F S5 200 D i @t o s wacad 1]

A LRANE

T2ty L] SR EITT s LA G S TN THITIOH 11 ] ST 7 (L A e

“y

31 APAsg T YT L e e

i1 e



G INE ey I% o @
v
T
101 L7L MIN 10 SNOILYATTS ACRELN o JMAZHDS AAOSSTTN
o 4 a2 e A AR P Hadrwmﬂugh»m_aﬁa i
——— uawwmaL I ) i b CrpReri At eiE TR TR )
RS m.lL“ f— wa| owem e | @
.@ T amomee o % wi-nea | wmem wm | 3)
Retinh i sl M e wea | wmsicn s s | G
b T v s Mol : B oI T oaew | rneon | ameaanl stsw s smame e s | (@
; ey S o mv:{_lté " x| e e | 9
o o s b T v sa——t w0 wapasvmmn o | @
— " iy o ueoseE | ramod warnes. | @
ik N T s wanora | eos AR % | @
vt e > s
AR S SRVHTS | O BOOW | HOILIH530 SRivi
oo AVS Sy R - Emy

q

mgpaLeL] SRR) T EE 2D ST LT S W GOPER [ LR0 FY A WIRITL Y. |

ZOI L1l YOH NN 10 SNOILYATTE oIy N2/ NOILYAZTE moﬁa

ikt I JHH WO
S E T
st s e ©

. anmio i i o aun =
[———2 m w SN0 L
E T T GO £
O = [t i
& e & o
"o @ ] ag
*
.
‘a ———
OO Bl OLOC NN T amEn”
& oy
¥
TNKOLN  pry INKBN Loy

TvL3a OOV DG TTL / Qa9 ONTIZ0 GAAN3ASE 5/ INaIHS Wooad N/

o
e ——— ) e ) R R e p— T TomeeZ | e | @
MV G ezl r Spe SRS TiY ot e
T — | awssr >y _ — — - ¥ [ s omery gy @
i 6 Sona [t
| e | - — i -m v iy | umomtt | @
o @ o »a
— oS e ) _— —_ —_ ol - Y Sl W30 | a0 e @
e Sl - v IR o
« pocraeronm D awr | L — | — ] — o kv | aamnt | @
1973108 2nd 1 v g R 30 anem w0 ST = ®
T ) QR TTI SN XM TS 19 —~ | owser % — - — LR v a3 | ke el
S A ot ) | emel
o veveneTms Wit Y] — — —_ - v
0 Tk STOMT D SOUTRMN O STIAE wsve | Tm -t L Wk
on e 2o
S e [l - — - oo . e | 1w | @
W e g G NI s o
PRI Gkt iy i R e e T el Ml W~ - K<)
VR TOM M 0,001 P YOI
e R S B I PR N B
St oo B = MO {aond | N ZLvd | 530 | HIE e b 530 Houd o
STV T W THUTIS TH Y .
e ShMAR | 3 ™ R~ o a
¥ I OV O 30 LTI IVMOAYH § JHYEd
-

B e I 70 9Y [V
Tl M ¥ T e

e L I A R L

P

ey

et

A1 A A e gt



3 =L
et oy
o

W 1 0 TN 0 OTNT™ T Yod TANIGEEN e STHIYE OYR B0 wrnd d

I-dM

s e oo ot B m Sinete
- il It Wi Smilen ElesA B R AT NINT B I T T
e Mhorgmizin + 4w T A HIT TOLYMEDT AR D IR S4OMOTS SV VNI W TR Swmllm LoD S O AN T -

1N3ILIINNGD 'LINNGD ¥3STIGQIH
THMWOND 40 NAMOL
QOH ITUASHDIH g

DINEYOOYETIAY
40 N1
Nvd TOYLNOD
NOISOY3 B ALAILN

o T 18
BINICN & BN W AR G R b in ORV DA §v Gl 3oaTien WL LT RGN kit ©

0 SHINII O S, (v L R b .

SEYR B ) AT

B —— o b

YA = . B, i Ty RS KT 1

s s 'SILON TOHINGD NOISGHT
e el
. g

xS

.

B I

= [T AR T
2] o
- rRien FLNYS 30w
[N '
"
- o e
e ara ary
e o i oy
Bevy iy
sz PRIV S —
. Foiastnsyy
s 110 a1 o Fisbarnty 5 tm

- Prp——
et weay
. e
e i
——— way rumnrey
—_— repr
ooy ey
puaba v

FId (¢M7 B Bbte sviin
ITSHNIST Sy
m

Kk pil
W OIrCE I 1A TanK alive T eov SN0 £ BIL636Y TON TRON 9w, e 3TN TIIT.0 12

WD Il AN YD N Y UNIRINNIIE Bl Wi EINVIRIIIC 1A S S

T -
F 5 AINROR  mrwivn AT NI TR MIR R LLYINYS R GASHE M NI ) WWSH 0 Do I
T L e VY SN IS MY AN [T DL 6 ITHE FIRTISN WNIYAYA IS Y WWLHIE A e pd —

Hid S0 GO P EL AT (P 3 4100M)8 O Ly WDg NIAO3 meeien R S0

RN SRR LD TR L e 7 T IR | TR TR AT T el - -
POHTRCSR D MEIS WE 6 ALY LT S TR RS 04 71T TR O g 10
NMN3 NG N5, Jhve T SeTa 1O O Shvisy
S
Shin TR HETE HIunON] e R OIw LINWMIIIC G TR SRR WG RN AMFIINYS TV <o
NN ¥ rr
NI CNY NI T8 S OIS LAMWTM " MU Jet 13 193 30 Vel SRMIYT XN 0 SORBENY 8 Sy F T s
I
SEYRD T VIM SSTL A W3 I T 1] KMITI B3I e SRR T D - —— P ]
O Gw A T D 10 U1 601 mel KNS 169 3WAAL 1e A3eGIa T LGk —
—
W SINIY W UL SST i D OWETY IOA by Gt i ~
gt P ot e TSR A S
~.
vear g ~
ISV LM TINRCHIIN M LTNGYD D QT T srm Tl OTuS Gev T TR IR T SONJE 0 SI SMM 0N 10

144 10 w0
W4 144 QEE0 % XA T« 0% mreen
oney B3NN UM ST NCL BRCI-S MGY

IS0 ZER 40K Ak 1
13WTYS temr 21N 1M S WS ML

HUUH ) UM T SN 0] N W MY N DA ST ST
SUMYILONY WD CEATTRLUS SHEO CUNGRYd 000 dde JWILXMIS LLULY e OIS T b

VI3 MM v Ailarn TRTGDS UATYRS BINIE LEYIARE e e mw
“aZliwie ANide 0y WaFEE SUITS Al (NS PR 1330 B

4308 0 Bviev e de
" i anedle

..!;
THTLIN Ex G i3 M ©3 ] TG A AITY SE DTWMAGL D Te LIANI 1 Aepe
KL o4 SDRITIOR 1T WCA 100 RN D b T4 ITeda) Viees BITRNGS Ta

SMOISMGD M1 LILI Onh Siinwde JuR3SE 01 SA.MRER IRIB) 10 NNEVIRGS WD) I WSRO,

eIt RS R MES TIWITIO BhY EtAE

BTN Gy SHVAINLIG K VIR Y 0 et Muie03 RaSOH)
EF NN W N TN G /vy TR ke Sl B DS IS T e e eens 0

Ty e

BT

=

D



£ Reply all| v [l Delete Junk|v  see

24-02 84 Hicksville road

Harold Holmes <hholmes@cromwellfd.com> S Replyall | v
Today, 2:33 PM
Popper, Stuart; Fontaine, Candice ¥

inbox

| have no issues with the application for special permit for Adelbrook. The alarm system was recently
updated to reflect this new use.

Harold Holmes NAFi- CEFI, I1AAI-FIT
Fire Marshal

Cromwell Fire District

1 West Street Cromwell Gt 06457
hholmes@cromwelifd.com

860-635 3188 Office

860-306-6534 Celi

860-635-5211 Dispatch

This e-mail message, including any attachments, is for the sole use of
the intended recipient(s) and may contain confidential or proprietary
information which is legally privileged. Any unauthorized review, use,
disclosure, or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended
recipient, please promptly contact the sender by reply e-mail and
destroy all copies of the original message.



& Replyall|v [ Delete Junk|v  see k4

Re: 24-02 84 Hicksville Road - Special Permit - Request For Plan Review

Egan, John & Replyall | v
Yesterday, 5:59 PM
Popper, Stuart; Fontaine, Candice; Driska, Bruce ¥

Inbox

| have performed a plan review for the above referenced project and would comment that there may be a change of
use within the context of the 2022 Connecticut State Building Code.

A full plan review of submitted Architectural plans will be required once the Special Permit is issued.

The overall existing site parking space layout plan may need minor adjustments to accommodate additional
accessible parking based on the number of existing parking spaces.

Sincerely, John Egan
Chief Building Official
The Town of Cromwell, CT



Fontaine, Candice

From: Parisi, Daniel

Sent: Monday, February 26, 2024 1:53 PM

To: Popper, Stuart

Cc: Fontaine, Candice

Subject: 24-02 84 Hicksville Road - Special Permit
Stuart,

The CWPCA has no comments on the application for the Special Permit.

Daniel Parisi

Town of Cromwell

CWPCA — Sewer Administrator
860-632-3430



TOWN OF CROMWELL

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT

MEMORANDUM
To: Stuart B. Popper, AICP, Director of Planning & Development
From: Bruce E. Driska, CZEO, Zoning & Wetlands Enforcement Officer B
Date: February 26, 2024
Re: Plan Review, PZC Application #24-02, Special Permit

I have reviewed Application #24-02 and have the following comment;

1. If signage will be considered to identify the proposed use please provide information.



Fontaine, Candice

From: Harriman, Jon

Sent: Friday, February 23, 2024 1:24 PM
To: Popper, Stuart

Cc: Driska, Bruce; Fontaine, Candice
Subject: PZ 24-02

I have reviewed the application for special permit at 84 Hicksville Road. The proposed changes appear to be limited to
the interior of the building, and as such there are no comments from this department. If exterior modifications are
determined to be required, we would like the opportunity to review.

Thanks,

Jon Harriman, P.E.
Town Engineer

Town of Cromwell, CT
ph: 860 632-3465

S 860 632-3477



Fontaine, Candice

From: Joe Palmieri <jpalmieri@cromwellfd.com>
Sent: Friday, February 23, 2024 2:50 PM

To: Fontaine, Candice; Popper, Stuart
Subject: FW: 24-02 84 Hicksville Road

Joseph A Palmieri

Water Operations Manager
Cromwell Fire District

1 West Street

Cromwell, CT 06416

Phone: 860-635-4420 x1000

fax: 860-632-0413
E-Miail:

From: Joe Palmieri

Sent: Friday, February 23,2024 2:12 PM

To: Fontaine, Candice <cfontaine@cromwellct.com>; Popper Stuart {(spopper@cromwellct.com)
<spopper@cromwellct.com>

Subject: 24-02 84 Hicksville Road

Good afternoon.

" This property until recently shared a water service with the neighboring property. A new water service was recently
installed for the house and the Tee connecting it to the church was eliminated on the church side.

Having said that, The Water Divisian has no issues with the application. We will however add it to our Cross Connection
Inspection list for inspections, and we will need to perform one (at no cost to the applicant} on the entire building prior
to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy.

Thank you.

Joseph A Palmieri

Water Operations Manager
Cromwell Fire District

1 Waest Street

Cromwell, CT 06416

Phone: 860-635-4420 x1000

Fax: 860-632-0413
E-Mail:



Town of Cromwell
Planning and Zoning Commission

REGULAR MEETING
7:00 P.M. TUESDAY FEBRUARY 20, 2024
TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

CROMWELL TOWN HALL ;

#1 WESTSTREET et
| Jeton Dinie
Minutes and Record of Votes CROMMELLs CT. ?“/
Present: Chairman Alice Kelly, Vice Chairman Michael Cannata, Ann Grasso, Nick

Demetriades, Douglas Kalinowski, Andrew Holt, Vincenzo Marfella, Robert Donohue,
Jonathan Comtois

Absent: Brian Dufresne, Paul Cordone, Ken Rozich

Also present:  Zoning Compliance Officer Bruce Driska, Director of Planning and Development
Stuart Popper, Mayor James Demetriades, Town Council Members Julia Aurigemma
and Stacy Dabrowski

1.  Callto Order

The meeting was called to order at 7:05pm by Chairman Kelly.

2. RollCall

The presence of the above members was noted.

3.  Seating of Alternates

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Doug Kalinowski to seat Andrew
Holt, Robert Donahue and Jonathan Comtois as alternates. All were in favor; the motion passed.

4. Approval of Agenda
A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Ann Grasso to approve the agenda

with the amendment to add application #24-03, Town of Cromwell, 1 Donald Harris Drive,
Athletic Facilities as item 7¢ under new business. All were in favor; the motion passed.



5.  Development Compliance Officer Report:
Mr. Driska said his report is the package and asked if there were any questions.
6. Director of Planning and Development Report:

Mr. Popper said they have added a section on the town website with current business’ in town.
He said this is on the EDC page and we will update as businesses open and close. Mr. Popper
said we will also maintain a list of properties for lcase and we will eventually add that to the
website as well. He said they have found it is only two to three real estate agents that handle
most listings in town. He said that the number of vacant properties is mostly large acreage sites.

Mr. Popper said Popeye’s submitted their updated mylars today so hopefully that is moving
forward soon.

7. New Business: Accept and Schedule New Applications: _
a. Application #24-01: Request to modify the Site Plan (remove sidewalks) at West Street
Commons on Mystique Lane. West Street Commons is the Applicant and the Owner.

Mr. Popper said this is a private development so it will be a business item on the agenda.

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Robert Donohue to accept and
schedule application #24-01 for the March 19, 2024 meeting. All were in favor; the motion
passed. '

b. Application #24-02: Request for a Special Permit under Section 2.2.C.4 of the Zoning
Regulations to allow for School operations and training at 84 Hicksville Road in the
Residence 25 (R-25) Zone District. Adelbrook, Inc./Adelbrook Hilltop Preschool and
Daycare is the Applicant and Adelbrook, Inc. is the Owner.

Mr. Popper said this will be a school in a residential zone so it will be a public hearing.

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Ann Grasso to accept and schedule
application #24-02 for a public hearing on March 19, 2024, All were in favor; the motion passed.

" ¢. Application #24-03 Town of Cromwell, 1 Donald Harris Drive; application for an athletic
facility. '

Mr. Popper said that the applicant has relinquished the approval of the previous application so
they can submit a new application. He said it is up to the Commission if they want to schedule a
public hearing for this application.

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Ann Grasso to accept and schedule
application #24-03 for a public hearing to be held on April 4, 2024. All were in favor; the motion
passed.



Mr. Popper reminded Chairman Kelly that a call for general public comments was not included
in the agenda.

Chairman Kelly asked if there were any members of the public who wanted to speak regarding
anything not on the agenda.

Mayor James Demetriades, 272 Skyview Drive said he felt it was best that the Town of
Cromwell Athletic facility application came back to this Commission for a public hearing. He
said it will eventually go before the Town Council where we will review it and have public
meetings to invite the citizens to provide feedback. He thanked the Commissioners for
scheduling a public hearing.

RN

Mayor Demetriades also told the commissioners that he had two Cromwell High School students
with him that were filming a documentary about town government. He asked if the
Commissioners could stay after the meeting to conduct some short interviews with the students.
He also said they are recording the meeting from the back of the room as well. Student Jacob
Brightman said he will conduct the interviews for the documentary and Student Aryan Chanda
said he is helping Jacob with the camera work.

Mr. Vasilios Lefkaditis said he owns the Cromwell Commons Shopping Center and said he
wanted to share a plan that they have been developing to get some feedback before they go any
further with the planning of the project. He said that they would like to build 150-200 apartments
on top of the shopping center. He said they would need to ask for a zone change from
commercial zone to a mixed use zone. Mr. Leﬂ<ad1tls asked if the Commissioners had any
feedback about that.

Mr. Kalinowski asked if they had enough parking for that. Mr. Lefkaditis said they have 580
spots and based on the regulations they have 280 free parking spots. Mr. Popper said it would
have to meet the parking regulations which are 2.5 spots per every 1,000 square feet and 1.5
spots for every apartment. Mr. Cannata said we will have new parking regulations soon and they
will have a new requirement due to the problems we have encountered in the past. Mr. Lefkaditis
asked when this will happen and Mr. Popper said probably early spring. Mr. Lefkaditis said this
would be a unique situation since the spaces would be empty at night when residents would be
coming home since the businesses are not open at night.

Mr. Demetriades asked if they would consider affordable housing and Mr. Lefkaditis said it
depended on the number of units they could build.

Chairman Kelly asked how tall the structure would be and Mr. Lefkaditis said 3 stories. Mr.
Popper said this zone would allow for 55 feet high buildings. Ms. Grasso asked about a parking
garage and Mr. Lefkaditis said there probably wasn’t enough room. Ms. Grasso asked if it would
be possible to use the space were Beautiful People was located and Mr. Lefkaditis said he would |
have to ask the engineer.

Mr. Kalinowski said it is a nightmare fo take a left hand turn out of the Starbucks onto Route
372. Mr. Popper said this kind of project would be under the review of the DOT.



Chairman Kelly asked if they could put up a fence behind the Pizza Pie and Chinese restaurant
building since it is very unattractive back there, Mr. Lefkaditis said he will bring it up with
 maintenance and grounds crews.

Mr. Marfella said the Firestone corner is a mess during the day, especially the back side by the
tree line, Mr. Lefkaditis said he will bring it up with Firestone.

8. New Business:

9. Public Hearings: :
a. The adoption of the 2024 Town Plan of Conservation and Development (POCD). The
The Town of Cromwell Planning and Zoning Commission is the Applicant.

Chairman Kelly reads the public hearing notice dated February 7, 2024.

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Ann Grasso to open the public hearing
for the adoption of the POCD. All were in favor; the motion passed.

Mir. Stuart Popper, Cromwell Director of Planning and Development said he will present the
POCD and will highlight different parts of the plan and 3 appendices. He said a new complete
street plan which is ADA compliant is required before we can apply for any new grants so that is
in my budget for this coming year. He said that many recommendations within the POCD are not
the prerogative of any one group but we know in the future we will seek grants that require some
of these recommendations. Mr. Popper said that we can continue the public hearing to the March
meeting if needed and said he is open to any questions the Commissioners or public may have.
Mr. Popper said that he was very pleased with SLR Consulting and they continue to work with
them on the zoning regulations.

Mr. Popper read a letter from Ms. Diane Wiegert, 75 Geer Street, Cromwell. She had questions
on the Industrial/Business park land on Geer Street and how it is show and what the land use
category is the future land use map.

Mr. Popper read a letter from Mr. James Rude, 25 Highridge Road, Cromwell. Mr. Rude
expressed his concerns about light, noise and sound pollution and the impact the various levels of
development have on existing neighborhoods.

M Popper read a letter dated February 20, 2024 from the Lower Connecticut River Valley
Council of Governments. The COG staff expressed concern about the future of agriculture in
Cromwell.

Mr. Popper said we held an open house and had surveys available for public outreach.

Chairman Kelly asked for members of the public who wanted to speak regarding the POCD.

Ms. Stacy Dabrowski, 3 Robbie Road Cromwell and a member of the Town Council said first
she wanted to tell the two students here filming for their documentary tonight that they are doing



a good job by participating in the town government process. Ms. Dabrowski said that 2.2% of the
population returned the surveys and many of them were 55 plus years old. She said a large
number of survey respondents were not representatives of the town's population and many
people are being overlooked. She said an active group of members are seeking out playing fields
but 45% of those who responded said that the fields in Cromwell are adequate. Mr. Cannata said
we have public hearings and this document doesn’t generate actual applications so those people
can be heard, but they chose not to respond to this survey. Mr. Popper reviewed the comments in
the POCD that recommend more parks and ball fields. Ms. Dabrowski said this document is
missing a whole data set. Mr. Popper said this survey was done to gather input not to base the
POCD on the study. He said we take what people say with a grain of salt and their thoughts are
not the guiding principle of the plan. Chairman Kelly told Ms. Dabrowski she should read
through the implementation section and that is the most important part of the plan. Ms.
Dabrowski said she is expressing her concern not disputing the wotk you have done. She said I
am just noting the lack of participation from the community.

Mayor James Demetriades, 272 Skyview Drive said in appendix B, the implementation table,
that they should add advisory boards such as Library advisory, DEI advisory, Youth Services,
Senior Services and Cultural advisory. He said [ do not want this to sit on a shelf for the next 10
years. Mr. Popper said he and Mr. Demetriades will disciiss the best way to enhance this area of
the plan. Mr. Demetriades said the bikes and pedestrian planning is great as well as the sidewalk
and open space plan. He said this is a job well done.

Chairman Kelly said in the past the POCD has goné into a drawer and no one has done what they
were supposed to do with it. She said we need to continually ask if we are meeting our goals.

Ms. Grasso said she will send her notes to Mr. Popper about the colors in the grids and said some
of the blues, oranges, red and yellows are difficult to see. She said that she read all of Ms.
Dabrowski’s comments and if we only look at the data from the surveys it would be wrong.

Mr. Nick Demetriades said he was happy to see the work being done with the River COG and we
can take advantage of other resources. He said this is a guide for us and other Commissions.

Mr. Popper said he can review all of these comments to see how we can make the plan better.

Chairman Kelly called a recess at 8:23pm to change the recording tape. She called the meeting
“back to order at 8:26pm.

Mr. Popper read the letter from Chairman Kelly dated November 20, 2023.

Mr. Popper said the Commissioners should look at the letters we received and let me know, in
your opinion, what we should do with the comments.

Mr. Cannata said that Mr, Rude’s comments aren’t POCD issues. He said they are regulation and
application situations. Mr. Cannata said he felt Ms. Wiegert’s comments were the same as well.
Mr. Popper said he just wants to make sure that we address all of the comments. He said he will
meet with the Mayor to identify the agencies we want to add. He said we also look to define the



words maintain and manage. Mr. Popper said they still need to add some pictures and a cover
letter. '

The Commissioners discussed the agricultural and industrial uses. Mr. Cannata said we basically
have one farm in Cromwell and many micro farms. '

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Nick Demetriades to continue the
public hearing for the POCD. All were in favor; the motion passed.

10. Commissioner's Comments:

M. Cannata said the State Legislature makes us-complete the POCD but they do not fund the
process. He asked Mr. Popper the price of producing the POCD and Mr. Popper said about
$75,000. Mr. Popper said we need the POCD to apply for grants and right now we have a waiver
until this is finalized. '

M. Nick Demetriades said he sent an email to the Commissioners with a list of River COG
legislative sessions. :

11. Adjourn:

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Robert Donohue to adjourn at 8:41pm.
All were in favor; the motion passed.

Respectfully submitted,

}/\_g(&b @MM“Q_,
inda Imme '
Recording Clerk



Town of Cromwell
Planning and Zoning Commission

REGULAR MEETING
7:00 P.M. TUESDAY MARCH 5, 2024
TOWN COUNCIL, CHAMBERS
CROMWELL TOWN HALL
41 WEST STREET

Minutes and Record of Votes

Present: Chairman Alice Kelly, Vice Chairman Michael Cannata, Ann Grasso, Nick
Demetriades, Douglas Kalinowski, Andrew Holt, Vincenzo Marfella, Robert Donohue,
Jonathan Comtois, Brian Dufresne '

Absent: Paul Cordone, Ken Rozich

Also present:  Zoning Compliance Officer Bruce Driska, Director of Planning and Development -
Stuart Popper

1. Call to Order

The meeting was called to order at 7:00pm by Chairman Kelly. RECEIVED FOR RECORD
: flar 12120%4 11:58A
2.  Roll Call %ggancggaﬁe

CROMWELLY CT
'The presence of the above members was noted.

3.  Seating of Alternates

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Doug Kalinowski to seat Andrew
Holt, Robert Donohue and Jonathan Comtois as alternates. All were in favor; the motion passed.

4.  Approval of Agenda

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Nick Demetriades to approve the agenda.
All were in favor; the motion passed.

5.  Public Comments:

6. Development Compliance Officer Report:



Mr. Driska said his report in the package. Mr. Popper said that application #24-04 will be coming but
not yet submitted since we don’t have the complete application.

7. Director of Planning an-d Development Report:

Mr. Popper said that the Texas Roadhouse Restaurant is scheduled to open on March 18, 2024 and
Bakery Chen is under construction at 50 Berlin Road. He said the Oliver Cromwell Tavern has
opened at 150 Sebethe Drive and the Hartford HealthCare Urgent Care at 28 Shunpike Road has
opened as well. Mr. Popper said the medical office building next to 80 Shunpike Road will begin
construction in the spring. He said the middle school construction is ongoing and the Auto Zone is
under construction. Mr. Popper said the developers of 100 Berlin Road said they will begin
demolition in 2024 at a recent Chamber meeting.

8. New Business: Accept and Schedule New Applications:

9. New Business:
a. Application #24-01: Request to modify the Site Plan (remove sidewalks) at West Street
Commons on Mystique Lane. West Street Commons is the Applicant and the Owner.

Mr. Popper told the public that he wanted to share some information about the application that is
being heard at the Inland Wetlands and Watercourses Agency meeting tomorrow night since many of
the public here this evening are abutters to that application. He said they will open the public hearing
tomorrow night and continue it to the next meeting but there will not be a presentation by the
applicant tomorrow. Mr. Popper said the applicant is looking at alternate ways to do the work that do
not involve the wetlands.

Ms. Carol Graziano said she is the board president at West Street Commons Association, She said
this is a 55+ community. Ms. Graziano said they have sidewalks within their private community. She
said they are eracked, heaved and are a liability. She said we would like to request that the sidewalks
in front of the units be removed and be replaced with grass. She said the plan would be to remove
them on an as needed basis in the order of those most in disrepair. Ms. Graziano said they would
retain the sidewalks on the right side of Mystique Lane as you turn onto the street. She said this is a
private road with limited traffic. She said the sidewalks in front of the units are very close to
resident’s windows and the sidewalks aren’t used by residents.

Mr. Cannata said the Chief of Police is recommending that we not approve this request because it is a
safety issue. He said it is exceptionally rare that we go against staff recommendations. Mr. Cannata
said your road is 5 feet narrower than the rest of the streets in town. He said sidewalks would allow
safety vehicles to have a paved area to pull up and extend any apparatus or outriggers and still allow
other emergency vehicles to move down the street. He said sidewalks were part of the site plan
approval. -

Ms. Graziano said the sidewalks are narrow and you can’t park an outrigger on them now. Mr.
Donohue said there is not enough room on either side now so I don’t see an advantage of the
sidewalks for that reason. Mr. Donohue said the sidewalks are heaved. Mr. Cannata said the Police
Chief said no. )

Ms. Graziano said many streets don’t have sidewalks and Mr. Cannata said that doesn’t mean we



should negate yours.
Mr. Dufresne said he has never seen a plan approved that the staff was not in favor of.

Mr. Holt asked why they wanted to get rid of the sidewalks and Ms. Graziano said they are too close
to the units and just not useful since they are not being used. She said we are 26 homes of retirees on
fixed incomes and we have to repair everything within the development. Ms. Graziano said the
developer should not have been permitted to put in asphalt sidewalks and now we are paying for it.
Mr. Cannata said I said sympathize with you but you knew what you were buying. Ms. Graziano said
it is the right thing to do and Chairman Kelly said it is a regulation and not about the right thing to
do.

Mr. Demetriades said we are making a big push in town to put SIdewalks in so 1t would be a
dangerous precedent to allow them to be removed.

Ms. Grasso said I sympathize with you as I live in a community with asphalt sidewalks where the
roads are safer. She said we are aware of these issues when we move into a new community.

Mr. Popper said he wanted to make sure Ms. Graziano clarified that the request is to remove all of
the sidewalks not just the ones in the cul de sac and Ms. Graziano said yes, all of the sidewalks in
front of the units.

Mr. Comtois said the regulations require sidewalks so it would be a bad precedent to allow them to
fall into disrepair and be removed.

Mr. Kalinowski said he agreed with the rest of the Commissions. Mr. Marfella said he agreed with
the Commissioners as well and it is a safety issue.

Mr. Donohue said the conditions of the sidewalks towards West Street are an existing liability and
they need some maintenance.

Chairman Kelly said we can’t allow you to remove them; it would go against our regulations.

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Doug Kalinowski to deny application
#24- 01 All were in favor; the motion passed

Ms. Graziano asked what the appeal process was and Mr. Popper said you can appeal within 2 weeks
by going to court and taking legal action.

10. Public Hearings:
a. The adoption of the 2024 Town Plan of Conservation and Development (POCD). The
Town of Cromwell Planning and Zoning Commission is the Applicant.

Chairman Kelly read the public notice for the POCD public hearing dated February 7, 2024.

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Robert Donohue to open the public
hearing. All were in favor; the motion passed.



Mr. Popper read new comments from citizen James Rude, 25 Highridge Road, Cromwell and read
his comments into the record. Mr. Rude was concerned about the impact of noise, light and traffic in
town and noted that it should be addressed in the plan. Mr. Popper said much of the POCD is
aspirational and are goals that we are striving to achieve. Ie said when we do many things in town,
like applying for grants, we have to reference the POCD and the status of our POCD. He said we
have had a waiver for a few years since more than 10 years has passed since the previous version was
publlshed

MTr. Popper said in regards to some of the comments we have heard about the survey. He said
Cromwell has about 10,000 registered voters and said the amount of people who vote is usually
small. He said we had 320 surveys returned so that is on par with most voter turnouts. He sald the
POCD is also based on interviews with department heads and other information.

Mr. Popper said he will call Ms. Grasso to discuss her color coding concerns and we will correct
some of them, especially the ones on page 9. He said this will be published online so it will be easy
to update, Mr. Popper said we will not be printing cases of the POCD. Ms. Grasso asked if one can
be put in the library and Mr. Popper said yes, we will put one in the reference section. Mr. Cannata
suggested having one in the Town Planners office and the Town Clerk’s office.

Mr. Popper said he will show the pictures at the next meeting along with a final draft and we will use
that meetmg as the adoption date. He said the plan was reviewed by the River COG and they said we
were in compliance with the State and surrounding towns.

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Doug Kalinowski to ¢ontinue the public
hearing until March 19, 2024. All were in favor; the motion passed.

11. Approval of Minutes:
a. February 6, 2024

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Doug Kalinowski to approve the minutes
of February 6, 2023. Ann Grasso refrained from voting and the rest of the Commissioners were in
favor; the motion passed.

12, Commissioner's Comments:

Mr. Cannata said there was no mention of green space or any other amenities including anything
recreational at the last meeting when the owner of the shopping center at 136 Berlin Road owner
gave the presentation about adding apartments. Mr. Popper said that is just a concept and he wanted
to get your feedback and input.

Mr. Demetriades and the commission members discussed the Sidewalk Plan for the Town. He asked
if Mr. Popper to find the sidewalk plan and Mr. Popper said he has never seen it. Mr. Popper said he

did ask for $100,000 in the budget for a Complete Streets plan as this is a requirement for many
grants they want to apply for. He said a sidewalk plan would be part of that plan.

13. Adjourn:

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Brian Dufresne to adjourn at §:00pm.



All were in favor; the motion passed.
Respectfully submitted,
o ’t/‘—‘f a @W

Linda Imme
Recording Clerk



